
1 
 

 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER & ESTABLISH A QUORUM (5:00 PM)  

_______ Councilwoman Garvey                                  _______ Councilwoman Wirkkala 

_______ Councilman Brennan           _______ Councilman Harjo              ______ Mayor Sykes 

 

RECOGNIZING PERSONS IN THE AUDIENCE (Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes) 

 

PUBLIC HEARING (Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes) 
1. Public Hearing establishing a fee for Missing and/or Replacement Keys for City Golf Carts.  

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 
       Has any Council Member received information pertaining to, or otherwise had, any contact with any 

person regarding any items on this City Council agenda? If so, please set forth the nature of the contact. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA  
      All matters listed within this Consent Agenda section require formal Council action; however, they are 

typically routine or not of great controversy and will be enacted by one motion. Questions for 
clarification may be asked about a particular item before the motion is voted on. However, for lengthy 
discussions or separate motions, a Council Member or citizen may request an item be removed from 
the Consent Agenda section and placed on the Regular Agenda. ALL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
LISTED BELOW ARE ACTION ITEMS. 

 
a) Approval acceptance of minutes:  Planning & Zoning Commission – March 4, 2025    

          Regular City Council Meeting – March 25, 2025                                                 
b) Bills from 3/26/2025 to 4/11/2025 in the amount of $583,336.04 
c) Payroll for the period ending 2/22/2025 to 3/21/2025 in the amount of $767,063.08 
d) Approve Amendment 1 with GUHO for City of Mountain Home Railroad Park Plaza and 

authorize the Mayor to sign.   
  

OLD BUSINESS  

1) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding approved resolution #08-2025 clarification of 
2025 Golf fees, City staff is seeking further clarification regarding the approved resolution. 
(Item discussed/approved March 25, 2025)  

          

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
City Council Chambers, 160 South 3rd East 

Mountain Home, Idaho 
Tuesday, April 8, 2025, at 5:00 PM 

 
                        Live Stream Viewing: https://www.youtube.com/c/MountainHomeIdaho 

 

   All materials presented at public meetings become property of the City of Mountain Home. Anyone desiring accommodation          
for disabilities should contact the City Clerk's Office at 208-587-2104 by at least 9:00 AM the morning of the public meeting. 

https://www.youtube.com/c/MountainHomeIdaho


2 
 

 

 

2) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding draft agreement with Race to Empower LLC. to 
operate an oval and straight track at Optimist Park and a 

3) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding the cooperative agreement between Elmore 
County and the City regarding the Animal Control Center and authorize the Mayor, City Clerk, 
and Chief of Police to sign. (Continued from March 25, 2025)  

4) Action Item: Deleberation/Decision regarding Police Chief's resignation letter and effective 
date. (Continued from April 3, 2025) (Councilwoman Wirkkala)  

5) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on the golf course concessionaire contract and pay 
schedule. (Continued from April 3, 2025) (Councilwoman Wirkkala)  

 

NEW BUSINESS  

1) Items removed from the Consent Agenda  

2) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to approve Resolution #09-2025R establishing a fee for 
missing and or replacement keys for City Golf carts.   

3) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding MHSD Stephensen Elementary Letter of Support 
2026. (Councilman Harjo)  

 

FINAL COMMENTS 

 

ADJOURN 

 

 

 



tbelt
Text Box
Public Hearing 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  

 

The Mountain Home City Council will hold a Public Hearing at its regular meeting on April 8, 

2025, at 5:00 p.m., in the City Council Chambers, 160 South 3rd East, Mountain Home, Idaho.  

The purpose of the hearing is to obtain citizen input and public comment on establishing a fee 

for Missing and/or Replacement Key for City Golf Carts at Desert Canyon Golf Course as 

follows: 

 
          CURRENT FEE   PROPOSED FEE 

Missing/Replacement Golf Cart Fee                $0.00      $20.00 (per key) 

 

 

Anyone who wishes to comment, but is unable to attend the hearing, may submit written 

comments prior to the meeting.  Address comments to City of Mountain Home, City Hall, 

Attention City Clerk, P.O. Box 10, Mountain Home, ID 83647 

 

The City of Mountain Home will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons with 

disabilities.  Any person needing an interpreter or special accommodations are urged to contact 

the City of Mountain Home Title VI Coordinator at 208-580-2091. 

 

Se les informan a las personas que necesitan servicios especiales o un intérprete para 

comunicarse con la ciudad de Mountain Home Coordinador del Título VI al 208-587-2104. 

 

 

__________________________  

Tiffany Belt, City Clerk     

 

First Publication: March 19, 2025 

Second Publication:  March 26, 2025 

 

tbelt
Stamp



CONSENT 
AGENDA 



 

Planning & Zoning Minutes 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO 

 

Live Stream Viewing: 

https://www.youtube.com/c/MountainHomeIdaho  

 

Tuesday, March 4th, 2025, at 5:30 PM 
 

 

ESTABLISH A QUORUM 

Chairperson Kristopher Wallaert noted a quorum present and called the March 4, 2025, Regular Meeting 

of the Planning and Zoning Commission to order. Attending were Planning and Zoning Commission 

Members, William Roeder, Rob McCormick, and Kristopher Wallaert.  

 

Cristina Drake was not in attendance. 

 

Staff members attending were Senior City Planner Brenda Ellis, City Planner Nicole Coffey. Legal 

Counsel Geoff Schoeder was not in attendance. 

 

MINUTES 

*February 18, 2025 

*February 20, 2025 

 

Commission Member William Roeder made a motion to approve the February 18, 2025, and February 20, 

2025, minutes. Commission Member Rob McCormick seconded the motion. All in favor; aye. The 

motion passed by a unanimous vote.  

 

RECOGNIZING PERSONS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

Helen Gonzales is trying to put a manufactured home on her property on Bradford. She would like to tear 

down the house that is currently there and replace with the manufactured home. The information that was 

given to her is if she is doing over $10,000 in repairs she would need to put in curb, gutter and sidewalk 

including half the asphalt for the road. The property is on a corner lot. The manufactured home will go 

right back into the same place the current house is located and use the same water and sewer lines. Helen 

is questioning putting asphalt in on the road. Senior City Planner Brenda Ellis suggested Helen and her 

contractor come in and have a meeting with her, Chris from Public Works, and Hank with Building 

Department.  

 

Don Gust he was supporting Helen Gonzales saying she should be able to do what she wants on her 

property. The roads are all new on Dogwood Cir. He hopes people know how to use the equipment. Helen 

is using her retirement and that we are messing with it. We should be focusing on other people’s 

sidewalks instead of making her do those changes. Don was recommended to talk to city council about his 

concerns since they can do more then the Planning and Zoning Commission. Don said he has been 

locating lines with Dig Line and everything goes through him because of what the city has been doing. 

Well at least around Helen’s area.  

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 

https://www.youtube.com/c/MountainHomeIdaho%20s


 

Planning & Zoning Minutes 
Page 2 of 2 

* Does any Commissioner, Commissioner's employer, or Commissioner's family member have an 

economic interest in any matter on the agenda? (Idaho Code 67-6506) - None 

* Have any Commissioners received communications or engaged in discussions regarding matters on this 

agenda outside of this meeting? –  None 

 

PUBLIC HEARING AND ACTION  

*None 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

*None 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

*Discussion - Land Use Chart Proposed Changes 

 

There was a discussion regarding that condominium will be removed from the land use chart, but the 

definition will still be available. 

 

There was a discussion regarding what we talked about at the prior Planning and Zoning Meeting. 

 

There was a discussion regarding in each zone what is permitted, conditional, and not allowed.  

 

There was a discussion regarding town houses.  

 

There was a discussion regarding Planned Unit Development. 

 

There was a discussion regarding dwelling commercial/mixed use.  

 

There was a discussion regarding zone LO/R. 

 

DEPARTMENT HEAD ITEMS 

*None 

 

 ITEMS REQUESTED BY COMMISSIONERS/STAFF  

*None 

 

ADJOURN 

Chairperson Kristopher Wallaert adjourned the meeting at 6:34 p.m.  

      

 

       

 Chair      



 

Council Minutes – March 25th, 2025 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO, 

HELD ON MARCH 25TH, 2025, AT 5:00 P.M. 

AT MOUNTAIN HOME CITY HALL CHAMBERS 

MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO 

 

#####  CALL MEETING TO ORDER/ESTABLISH A QUORUM  

 

  PRESENTATION 

1)Presentation Lost Paws TNR program 

 

#####  RECOGNIZING PERSONS IN THE AUDIENCE  

 

##### CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 

  Has any Council Member received information pertaining 

to, or otherwise had any contact with any person 

regarding any items on this City Council agenda? If so, 

please set forth the nature of the contact. 

   

#####       CONSENT AGENDA – All matters listed within this Consent 

Agenda section require formal Council action, but are 

typically routine or not of great controversy and will 

be enacted by one motion. Questions for the purpose of 

clarification may be asked about a particular item 

before the motion is voted on. However, for lengthy 

discussion or separate motion a Council member or 

citizen may request an item be removed from the Consent 

Agenda section and placed on the Regular Agenda. ALL 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS LISTED BELOW ARE ACTION ITEMS.   

 
A. Approval/Acceptance of Minutes 

  Impact Fee Advisory Committee – February 6, 2025 
  Impact Fee Advisory Committee – February 19, 2025 
  Special City Council – March 7, 2025 
  Regular City Council – March 11, 2025 

B. Bills – 3/12/2025 to 3/25/2025 in the amount of 
$499,458.88 

C. Treasurer’s report for the period ending 2/28/2025 
D. Pass resolution #07-2025R authorizing amendment of 

interim warrant for Fiber Optics Local 
Improvement District #1 and authorizing the Mayor 
and City Clerk to sign 
 

##### OLD BUSINESS 
 

##### NEW BUSINESS 
 1)Items removed from the Consent Agenda 
 

2)Action Item: Deliberation/decision regarding resolution 
#08-2025R providing clarification to 2025 golf fees 

3)Action Item: Deliberation/decision regarding the 
cooperative agreement between Elmore County and the 
City regarding the Animal Control Center and 
authorize the Mayor, City Clerk, and Chief of Police 
to sign. 



 

Council Minutes – March 25th, 2025 

 
##### FINAL COMMENTS 
 
 
##### ADJOURN 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO, 

HELD ON MARCH 25TH, 2025, AT 5:00 P.M. 

 

 The Council of the City of Mountain Home, Elmore County, Idaho, met at 

the Mountain Home City Hall Chambers, 160 South 3rd East, Mountain Home, Idaho 

on March 25th, 2025. A quorum was established with, Councilwoman Garvey, 

Councilman Harjo, and Mayor Sykes being present. Councilwoman Wirkkala and 

Councilman Brennan by phone.  

 

PRESENTATION 

 

1) Presentation: Lost Paws TNR program 
 

Beverly King and Shannon Evans with Lost Paws TNR came forward to discuss 

the importance of amending the City ordinance to allow participation of trap, 

neuter, and return within City limits. 

 

Shannon Evans said that they are here to request clarification on whether 

the City Ordinance cited in the Chief of Police’s letter, specifically 6-6-

4B and 6-6-13, applies to TNR programs. She said that Danniele Strain, Animal 

Control Center Supervisor, ordinance 6-6-4B limits the number of cats per 

household to 3, and 6-6-13 addresses animals running at large. She said that 

they seek to understand whether these ordinances were written specifically 

for feral and stray cats that are unowned or if they are meant to address 

family pets. She continued to answer statements addressed in the Chief of 

Police’s letter.  

 

Shannon Evans continued by saying that they are not asking for funding 

from the City, although that would be greatly appreciated, they are requesting 

that they be permitted to continue their efforts. She asked if they are not 

allowed to continue, they asked what the City’s plan along with Animal 

Control, to help these cats.  

 

Shannon Evans read several letters from members of the community in 

support of the TNR program. She then asked the Mayor and Council if they had 

any questions they’d like to ask.  

 

Councilwoman Garvey asked if a person is taking on feral cats, why can’t 

they take on the responsibility of spaying or neutering those cats?  

 

Shannon Evans said that more often than not, these cats showed up, and 

people took care of them, which caused more cats to show up. She said that 

most people were not educated on how to handle this or could not afford it, 

and that was where this program stepped in. 



 

Council Minutes – March 25th, 2025 

 

Councilwoman Garvey asked why the City needs to change its ordinance if 

you can just bring the cat to the vet. 

 

Shannon Evans said that she and Beverly King were previously part of 

another organization that did TNR, and their board came to them and informed 

them that they were told by law enforcement that they were no longer allowed 

to provide that service, as it was illegal. She said that they are just trying 

to make sure that they are following the law. She said that they were told 

they could trap the cats and get them neutered, but it was the return part 

that was against the ordinances.  

 

Councilman Harjo said that he was part of the Council and Staff that 

helped rewrite 6-6 of the City ordinances. He said during that rewrite, they 

went extensively through State law and compared it to other municipalities 

around the State to make sure that the City was in alignment with the rest 

of the State. He said he went through all of his notes, and he could not find 

any reference to any ordinances within the State that promote the release.  

 

Councilman Harjo went on to describe places in the City that have large 

feral cat populations and how business owners have complained of them being 

a nuisance due to urine and feces. He asked about the ongoing maintenance of 

health that goes on after the cat has been treated by medical care and 

released, if there is any. 

 

Shannon Evans said she wanted to address the nuisance issue and that 

she sympathized with the business owners, but the alternative to not fixing 

them is that their numbers continue to grow. She said that she hasn’t studied 

the laws and ordinances for the State, but other cities in Idaho are 

participating in TNR programs, and that there has to be a way to work through 

it. She said that as far as the ongoing care after the release, the colonies 

they are helping with have caretakers. She said she gets calls all the time 

from caretakers asking them for help when an issue arises, and they help. 

 

Councilman Brennan said the term “controlled colony” sounds like 

ownership to him.  

 

Shannon Evans explained that controlled colony is a phrase that rescuers 

and trappers use to say that they started with this colony and none of them 

were fixed, and now all of them are fixed, it’s controlled and sustained, and 

there won’t be any more babies.  

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala asked that Shannon Evans and Beverly King stay 

until the end of the meeting, as she has something she wants to get on the 

Agenda for the next meeting.  

 

Councilwoman Garvey said that they need to look at several things, and 

get clarification on feral cats, as the definition states that a feral animal 

may or may not be owned by a person.  

 



 

Council Minutes – March 25th, 2025 

RECOGNIZING PERSONS IN THE AUDIENCE 

 

• Tyler Merryman said that he really likes the trap and neuter part 

of the TNR program, but does not like the release part. He said they have a 

lot of cat allergies in his household, and the feral cats get onto his patio 

furniture. He also mentioned urine and feces problems, as well as that his 

dog had been attacked on his property. 

 

• Shannon Evans responded to Tyler Merryman’s comments about farmers 

wanting cats, but it’s not as simple as dropping them off at barns. She said 

she has reached out to farmers to see if they are interested in barn cats and 

hasn’t had much luck in that front. 

 

• Bill Vanhandle wanted to continue the discussion of creating an 

airport overlay zone. He said that he was encouraged by Councilwoman 

Wirkkala’s acknowledgement of the benefits of industry coming to Mountain 

Home, and wanted to know if that support includes industry coming to citizen’s 

private property.  

 

• Crystal Moore stated that she resides in the county and was 

strongly in favor of the TNR program. She said she wanted to speak on behalf 

of the animals and the cruelty that she had seen on Facebook and that she had 

seen firsthand. She said that they do need to get the population under control 

and find homes for them. She also mentioned that there was someone who was 

trapping cats and immediately killing them, whether they are stray or someone 

else’s pet. 

 

• Beverly King said that they had done a TNR over the weekend for 

cats that had been abandoned by someone who had moved. She said that they 

were told the person who had abandoned these cats had worked for the Sheriff’s 

department. She said that she was currently fostering them and working to get 

them to a shelter. 

 

• Lorrice Akers asked if TNR isn’t acceptable and these cats are a 

nuisance, why was the Animal Shelter not doing anything. 

 

• Nesha Merryman said that they went to the Animal Shelter and were 

told that it was legal for people to feed cats outside of their property, and 

they were given a live trap to place on their property, and that Animal 

Control would come pick them up. 

 

• Decker Sanders said that for several years, he and his wife had 

made their yard a habitat that would attract a lot of wild birds. He said 

that they have about 40 quail that nest in his backyard. He said that there 

is a cat that has become a predator, that has even gone after his dog. He 

said it had been previously trapped, and several months later, this same cat 

returned. He tried to get in touch with Animal Control to trap it again, but 

was not able to. He trapped it himself and took it to Animal Control, and was 

told not to do that again, going forward, without getting in touch with Animal 



 

Council Minutes – March 25th, 2025 

Control first.  

 

Has any Council Member received information pertaining to, or otherwise 

had any contact with any person regarding any items on this City Council 

agenda? If so, please set forth the nature of the contact.  

 

• Councilman Harjo said that he received a message on his personal 

Facebook page regarding TNR from a gentleman named Les and emailed it on to 

the City Clerk, the Mayor, and the City Attorney for it to be entered as 

public record. 

 

• Councilman Brennan said that he’s had written correspondence with 

Terri Manduca, Paula Riggs, and Marcella Trueba about New Business #2.  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

All matters listed within this Consent Agenda section require formal 

Council action, but are typically routine or not of great controversy and 

will be enacted by one motion. Questions for the purpose of clarification may 

be asked about a particular item before the motion is voted on. However, for 

lengthy discussion or separate motion a Councilmember or citizen may request 

an item be removed from the Consent Agenda section and placed on the Regular 

Agenda. ALL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS LISTED BELOW ARE ACTION ITEMS. 

 
A.  Approval/Acceptance of Minutes 

  Impact Fee Advisory Committee – February 6, 2025 
  Impact Fee Advisory Committee – February 19, 2025 
  Special City Council Meeting – March 7, 2025 
  Regular City Council Meeting – March 11, 2025 

B. Bills – 3/12/2025 to 3/25/2025 in the amount of $499,458.88 
C. Treasurer’s report for the period ending 2/28/2025 
D. Pass resolution #07-2025R authorizing amendment of an interim 

warrant for Fiber Optics Local Improvement District #1 and 
authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign 

 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala asked if the resolution could be explained in 
layman’s terms for the citizens to understand why they would approve this 
resolution. 
 
 Tiffany Belt, City Clerk, said that the resolution is because the date 
of the interim financing for the LID has expired, so while they are closing 
it out, they have to extend that date.  
 
 Councilman Harjo said he had a brief discussion via email with Tiffany 
Belt regarding a change by interlineation for the meeting minutes from March 
11, 2025, to correct a misquote by the speaker at the time.  
 
 Councilwoman Garvey made a motion to approve the consent agenda and 
change through interlineation the verbiage mentioned by Councilman Harjo. 
Councilman Harjo seconded the motion. 
 
 The following vote was recorded: 
 
  Councilwoman Garvey  AYE 
  Councilman Harjo   AYE 
  Councilwoman Wirkkala  AYE 



 

Council Minutes – March 25th, 2025 

  Councilman Brennan  AYE 
 
 The vote being unanimous, the motion was carried and so ordered.  
 
OLD BUSINESS  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

1)Items removed from the Consent Agenda 

 

There were no Items removed from the Consent Agenda for consideration. 

 

2) Action Item: Deliberation/decision regarding resolution #08-2025R 

providing clarification to 2025 golf fees. 

 

Councilwoman Garvey said that the only changes made to this were that 

weekday passes are now Monday through Friday instead of Monday through 

Thursday and how tournament and league payouts for season pass holders. 

 

Mayor Sykes said that he agreed that they had a great meeting with 

great dialogue. He asked for clarification on whether changing Monday 

through Thursday was due to TJ Gomez’s, the Golf Pro's, request.  

 

Councilwoman Garvey said the problem was that one spot stated weekday 

passes were available Monday through Friday, while another stated Monday 

through Thursday. She said it needed to be clarified, that it had always 

been weekdays, Monday through Friday.  

 

Tiffany Belt said that they did some digging and found that between 

the 2019 and 2021 seasons, the language on the top became apparent on every 

resolution from that date forward. She said prior to 2019, a weekday was 

Monday through Friday.  

 

Councilwoman Garvey said that in the meeting, the discussion was to 

honor it because it was not clear, and that so many people had already 

purchased their weekday passes, or that they needed to offer refunds. She 

said that next year it can be changed, but season pass holders need to be 

informed before they purchase their passes. She also said that league play 

and tournaments are covered by season pass holders.  

 

Councilman Brennan added to the discussion of the definition of Friday 

and where it falls, and the definition of weekdays and weekends. He said 

that he remembers clearly that TJ Gomez came to the City Council and 

recommended that they move Friday to being defined as weekend play. He said 

that the Council followed suit with his recommendation at the time. He said 

that in his email correspondence with Terri Manduca that she confirmed in 

email that TJ Gomez himself suggested charging weekend rates on Fridays, 

but her email said specifically to transient golfers to drive revenue to 

the City. He said this was a 2019 discussion for a 2020 implementation. He 

said that he would like to keep Friday defined as weekend play. He said to 

maybe make an exception to this year, but to correct the resolution. 



 

Council Minutes – March 25th, 2025 

Councilwoman Garvey said that Councilman Brennan is half correct. She 

said that there are two different things that are being discussed. She said 

that historically, if she went to play and did not have a season pass, and 

was going on a Friday, that was considered weekend rates. She said that is 

still how they have been and will continue to operate. She said what she is 

discussing is the weekday pass and that weekday passholders can golf Monday 

through Friday.  

 

Councilman Brennan asked why they are defined differently. 

 

Councilwoman Garvey said that it has always been that Fridays are 

weekend rates for non-pass holders and that it’s just the weekday passes 

that got murky. 

 

Mayor Sykes clarified that there is an unlimited pass and that there 

is a weekday pass that can be purchased.  

 

Councilman Harjo said that they had a lot of clarification on process 

and procedure as well as the limited amount of exception to be made on to 

rectify unclear verbiage on the passes and resolutions. He said that coming 

out of that meeting, the week day pass was to be Monday through Friday, and 

the adult unlimited pass counts towards tournament and league play, as well 

as the weekday pass for league play. 

 

Councilwoman Garvey said that she feels we should honor these changes 

for those that have already paid for their passes for the season. 

 

Councilman Harjo said that they also defined that twilight fees will 

begin two hours before sunset, 7 days a week, but that is always subject to 

the Golf Managers discretion. 

 

Councilwoman Garvey made a motion to approve the deliberation/decision 

regarding resolution #08-2025R providing clarification to 2025 golf fees as 

written. Councilman Harjo seconded the motion. 

 

Councilman Brennan asked Tiffany Belt if this was a resolution that 

needed to come back annually or if it was only mandated if they wanted to 

change the fees. 

 

Tiffany Belt said that if you want to amend the fees, the resolution 

will need to come back.  

 

Councilman Brennan said that he would like to see it done differently 

but that he would go with the motion as is, but he stated for the record 

that he would be asking for it to come back to Council if that happens 

before January 2026. 

 

The following vote was recorded: 

 

 Councilwoman Wirkkala  AYE 



 

Council Minutes – March 25th, 2025 

 Councilman Brennan  AYE 

 Councilwoman Garvey  AYE 

 Councilman Harjo   AYE 

 

The vote being unanimous, the motion was carried and so ordered. 

 

3)Action Item: Deliberation/decision regarding the cooperative 

agreement between Elmore County and the City regarding the Animal Control 

Center and authorize the Mayor, City Clerk, and Chief of Police to sign. 

 

Councilwoman Garvey asked if Councilmembers Brennan and Wirkkala 

received the edits that she sent to them. She said that she was able to get 

the opinion of Legal, he provided edits, and he said that the rest looked 

good.  

 

 Councilman Harjo said that it was briefly discussed with Councilwoman 

Garvey about language regarding invoicing and due dates. He asked if Legal 

could add a passage with the suggestions of the Clerk and Treasurer of when 

that is appropriate. He said that it is his only suggestion for an 

addition.  

 

 Councilwoman Garvey said that that can easily be added, but that we 

need to figure out how they are going to bill, whether that’s monthly, 

quarterly, whatever is easiest to figure out. 

 

 Paula Szafranski, City Treasurer, said she would follow whatever the 

Council decides. 

 

 Mayor Sykes said that he thought yearly would probably be the easiest, 

just send one bill.  

 

 Paula Szafranski said that yearly would create outstanding revenue for 

the audit, and we don’t want to do that. 

 

 Councilwoman Garvey and Paula Szafranski agreed that quarterly would 

be good. 

 

 Councilman Brennan asked that we keep in mind Councilman Harjo’s 

suggestion of an intergovernmental agreement with the County on waiving 

fees in both directions as billing is discussed.  

 

Tiffany Belt stated that she understands the intergovernmental 

agreement to waive fees. However, the Animal Shelter and Building 

Department fees are two completely different pots, and as Staff, that’s 

going to get messy. She said that she can guarantee the City’s auditors are 

not going to like it.  

 

Councilman Brennan asked for clarification from Jon Thompson, Police 

Chief, on a section on the agreement. He asked what his intent was from 

changing three dogs to three kennels.  



 

Council Minutes – March 25th, 2025 

 

Chief Thompson said that it was changed to three kennels from three 

dogs if they have a situation where the County brings in three dogs from 

one household. Typically, those dogs are housed in the same kennel. He said 

that he doesn’t think the intent is to restrict the County from other 

kennels. He said this change opens up more access to the County.  

 

Councilwoman Garvey said that she will figure out the best course of 

action for where to add the language requested by Councilman Harjo, and she 

will email it out once it’s been cleaned up.  

 

Councilwoman Garvey made a motion to approve the cooperative agreement 

between Elmore County and the City regarding the Animal Control Center with 

the pending edits.  

 

Councilman Brennan said that he’d like to see reserved space for 

potential County animals, rather than only if they aren’t full of City 

animals can they come in. He said he’d like to see more time and attention 

spent on that before approval. 

 

Councilwoman Garvey said that language is not even in the current MOU. 

She said that it’s struck out that portion in the edits, and she added per 

the Chief’s request that if the Animal Shelter is at capacity, the County 

understands that this agreement is based on overall availability of space.  

 

Councilman Brennan said that he would like to see some kind of 

guaranteed space for the County.  

 

Chief Thompson said that he thinks the revision stating that they 

would give up to three kennels is more than sufficient. He said it is a 

City facility staffed by City employees and is here for the benefit of the 

City. He said that staff does not want to get into a position where they 

are flooded with more County dogs that they can’t take in City dogs.  

 

Councilman Harjo said that he agrees with Councilman Brennan’s 

request. 

 

Councilwoman Garvey said that she will rewrite with those edits and 

send it out.  

 

Councilman Harjo asked Tiffany Belt, with edits coming back, if it 

needs to be brought back in its full and complete state or with the minor 

edits that will be made to approve.  

 

Tiffany Belt said that would be the best way. 

 

Mayor Sykes stated that this will be discussed at the next Council 

meeting.  

 

FINAL COMMENTS 



 

Council Minutes – March 25th, 2025 

 

 Councilwoman Wirkkala asked to add to the April 22nd agenda to discuss 

possibly implementing a City ordinance for TNR. She said that pushing it 

out a month should give Legal time to research the State law concern, as 

mentioned earlier.  

 

ADJOURN 

 

 There being no further business to come before the Council, the meeting 

was adjourned at 6:28 P.M. by orders from Mayor Sykes. 

 

 

 

 

       ___________________ __________   _  _ 

       Rich Sykes, Mayor  

  

 

ATTEST:  ____________________________ 

         Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 



















































OLD 
BUSINESS 



 

        City of Mountain Home       City Hall & Office of Mayor Sykes 

P.O. Box 10, 160 S. 3rd East, Mountain Home, ID 83647 • (208) 587-2104 • www.mountain-home.us 

 

P.O. Box 10 ● Mountain Home, ID 83647  
www.mountain-home.us 

 

April 4, 2025  

 

RE: Race to Empower LLC. agreement  

City Council Meeting: April 8, 2025  

 

Mayor and City Council members, 

After further consultation with City Legal, it has been confirmed that the motion and 
approval granted at the November 26, 2024, City Council meeting pertained exclusively to 
the existing agreement with Mountain Home Speedway for the operation of an oval 
racetrack at Optimist Park. 

At that time, the operator—now known as Race to Empower LLC—was seeking a name 
change, and the existing agreement was not included in the City Council packet for review. 
As a result, the Council did not have the opportunity to review or evaluate the terms of the 
agreement during that meeting. 

Race to Empower LLC now intends to continue operating the oval racetrack and also 
construct and operate a straight racetrack at the same location. Based on this expanded 
scope, City staff and legal counsel believe that the drafting and approval of a new 
agreement is necessary for the following reasons: 

1. The existing agreement does not contain a reference to a straight track or its 
associated operations. 

2. The rental fee schedule outlined in the existing agreement does not align with 
current land lease agreements for similar uses. 

3. Corrections are needed to the exhibits attached to the original agreement. 

To support discussion and provide clarification, the following documents have been 
included for review: 

• The existing agreement with Mountain Home Speedway 
• The document submitted by Race to Empower LLC as part of the November 26, 

2024, Council packet 
• The City Council agenda from November 26, 2024 
• The approved City Council meeting minutes from November 26, 2024 
• Email provided to the operators of the track and the Director of Race to Empower 

LLC.  

http://www.mountain-home.us/


 

        City of Mountain Home       City Hall & Office of Mayor Sykes 

P.O. Box 10, 160 S. 3rd East, Mountain Home, ID 83647 • (208) 587-2104 • www.mountain-home.us 

 

Let me know if you have any questions or require additional information. 

 
 

 
Respectfully,  
 
 
 
Tiffany Belt  
City Clerk 
 
 
T  (208) 587-2104 
tbelt@mountain-home.us  
 
 

mailto:Mayor@mountain-home.us
tbelt
Stamp



tbelt
Highlight

















1 
 

 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER & ESTABLISH A QUORUM (5:00 PM)  

_______ Councilwoman Garvey                                  _______ Councilwoman Wirkkala 

_______ Councilman Brennan           _______ Councilman Harjo              ______ Mayor Sykes 

 

PUBLIC HEARING (Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes) 

1. Proposed exchange of City-owned real property for real property owned by AgEquity 
Holding LLC.  

 

RECOGNIZING PERSONS IN THE AUDIENCE (Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes) 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 
       Has any Council Member received information pertaining to, or otherwise had, any contact with any 

person regarding any items on this City Council agenda? If so, please set forth the nature of the 
contact. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA  
      All matters listed within this Consent Agenda section require formal Council action; however, they are 

typically routine or not of great controversy and will be enacted by one motion. Questions for 
clarification may be asked about a particular item before the motion is voted on.  For lengthy 
discussions or separate motions, a Council Member or citizen may request an item be removed from 
the Consent Agenda section and placed on the Regular Agenda. ALL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
LISTED BELOW ARE ACTION ITEMS. 

 
a) Approval/Acceptance of minutes:   Planning and Zoning Commission – November 5, 2024 

                                                                    Regular City Council – November 12, 2024 
b) Bills from 11/13/2024 to 11/26/2024 in the amount of $832,903.73 
c) Treasurer's report for the period ending 10/31/2024 
d) Approve city staff to go out for a Request For Qualifications for airport engineering service at 

the Mountain Home Municipal Airport.   
e) Approve the concessionaire agreement with Jared Lemieux and authorize the Mayor and City 

Clerk to sign.   
f) Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign all required documents for grant application 

          

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
City Council Chambers, 160 South 3rd East 

Mountain Home, Idaho 
Tuesday, November 26, 2024, at 5:00 PM 

 
                        Live Stream Viewing: https://www.youtube.com/c/MountainHomeIdaho 

 

 

   All materials presented at public meetings become property of the City of Mountain Home. Anyone desiring accommodation          
for disabilities should contact the City Clerk's Office at 208-587-2104 by at least 9:00 AM the morning of the public meeting. 

https://www.youtube.com/c/MountainHomeIdaho


2 
 

2024/25-010. 
g) Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign all required documents for grant application 

2024/25-011. 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

1) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding the proposed Master Transportation Plan.  
 

 

NEW BUSINESS  

1) Items removed from the Consent Agenda  

2) Action Item:  Deliberation/Decision on the Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommendation to approve Findings of Fact on 10th Street Neighborhood preliminary plat. 

3) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to approve and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to 
sign the agreement for the exchange of City-owned real property for real property owned by 
AgEquity Holdings LLC. as described in the notice of public hearing that was published in the 
Mountain Home News, and to authorize and direct the Mayor and City Clerk to proceed with 
the closing of the exchange and to sign all necessary documents required to do so. 

4) Action Item:  Deliberation/Decision to approve continuation of Mountain Home Speedway 
Track to be managed by Race to Empower. 

 

FINAL COMMENTS 

 

ADJOURN 





tbelt
Highlight

tbelt
Highlight

tbelt
Highlight















Outlook

Draft agreement

From Tiffany Belt <tbelt@mountain-home.us>
Date Thu 4/3/2025 4:24 PM
To Eric Barsness <Ebarsness47@hotmail.com>
Cc Mayor <mayor@mountain-home.us>
Bcc Paul Fitzer <pjf@msbtlaw.com>

1 attachment (1 MB)
Lease Agreement - Race to Empower LLC - April 2025 .pdf;

Eric, Good evening,

I have attached a draft agreement for your review.

Additionally, I would like to inform you that this agreement is scheduled to be presented to the City
Council for approval on Tuesday, April 8th, at 5:00 PM during the regular City Council meeting.

After further consultation with City Legal, it has been clarified that the motion and approval from
the November 26, 2024, meeting pertained specifically to the existing agreement, which addresses
only the oval racetrack and does not include any provisions for the future straight track. Therefore,
seeking approval for a new agreement is necessary. 

I understand that this process may be unfortunate and potentially frustrating for you and others
involved. However, it is critical that the City adheres to the appropriate legal process and follows the
guidance of  our legal counsel to ensure compliance with all procedural and legal requirements. 

Please let me know if  you have any requested edits to the draft agreement or if  any concerns
should be addressed in advance of  the City Council meeting. 

Tiffany 

Tiffany Belt
City Clerk/ HRO
 
City of Mountain Home
160 South 3rd East

tbelt
Highlight
hotmail.com>

tbelt
Highlight
Ebarsness47@



 

Agreement - 1 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this _____ day of April, 

2025, between THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO, a municipal corporation of 

the County of Elmore, State of Idaho, whose address is P.O. Box 10, Mountain Home, 

Idaho 83647, hereinafter designated as the “City,” and RACE TO EMPOWER LLC., 

whose address is _____(Address)___________________, hereinafter defined in the singular 

and by masculine gender as “Race to Empower LLC.” 

 

RECITALS 

 

(a) The City owns that certain real property located within the City designated 

as “Optimist Park.” 

 

(b) Located within Optimist Park is a speedway oval racetrack and a straight 

track, which are shown and depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto and by this 

reference made a part hereof (hereinafter referred to as the “Premises”). 

 

(c) Race to Empower LLC. desires to enter into a lease agreement with the City 

for the Premises, and the City desires to lease the Premises to Race to Empower LLC. 

in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

 IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual promises and covenants contained in the 

Agreement the City and Race to Empower LLC. hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. USE OF THE PREMISES: For and in consideration of the promises contained 

herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the City hereby leases the 

Premises to Race to Empower LLC. for the purpose of operating an oval racetrack 

and straight track in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein, and 



 

Agreement - 2 

for no other purposes.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, Race to 

Empower LLC. and its agents and employees will only use the Premises for a 

purpose consistent with the permitted use described in this Agreement.  Race to 

Empower LLC. further agrees that it shall not permit or knowingly condone any 

illegal activities to occur on said leased Premises.  Race to Empower LLC. further 

covenants and agrees that it will keep said Premises in a neat, sanitary, and safe 

condition and that it will comply with all applicable laws and regulations imposed 

by the State of Idaho, the United States of America, or any other governmental 

authority (collectively, the “governmental authorities”), applicable to the occupancy 

or use of the Premises, and further including all rules, regulations, laws, and 

industry standards respecting fire and health and safety measures.  Race to 

Empower LLC. further agrees to secure all licenses and permits required by said 

governmental authorities to operate a business on said Premises.  Any use differing 

from that stated in this Agreement shall not be made without the prior written 

consent of the City. 

 

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement shall be from the 1st 

day of April 2025 until the 31st day of December 2035, unless sooner terminated as 

provided herein.  The City, at its sole option, may renew the lease for additional 

terms upon the same or different terms by written agreement. 

 

3. RENT.  The Lessee shall pay the City the current full-day park reservation 

fee as rent for the premises for each scheduled event held on the premises.  

Race to Empower LLC. shall pay to the City as rent for the Premises an annual 

amount of $5.00, payable to the City on or before the 1st day of October, each year.  

 

4. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT BY CITY.  This Agreement may be 

terminated by either party upon a material breach of this Agreement and failure to 

cure such material breach after thirty (30) days’ written notice.  The City maintains 



 

Agreement - 3 

the right to terminate this Agreement without cause on sixty (60) days’ notice.  In 

any such event, Race to Empower LLC. shall be required to remove all personal 

property and otherwise vacate the Premises on or before the expiration of the sixty 

(60) day period.  The City may immediately re-enter and take possession of the 

Premises with or without process of law.  In the event of re-entry by the City, its 

agent or employees, Race to Empower LLC. shall be liable for any damages, costs, or 

fees incurred by the City in recovering the Premises. 

 

5. OPERATION OF PREMISES. 

 

5.1 Racing Events and Practices.  The Premises shall be used by Race to 

Empower LLC. for racing events and practices from February 10th, 2025 

through September 30th,  2025, with the exception of the 4th week of June of 

each year, during which time no events or practices shall be held. All 

participants in races and practices will be required to sign a Release and 

Waiver of Liability Agreement each year, the form of which is attached hereto 

as Exhibits B and C and by this reference made a part hereof.  

 

Race to Empower LLC. shall provide a schedule of all races and practice times 

for the annual racing seasons when the Premises will be used to the City’s 

Parks and Recreation Department and the City Clerk’s office by March 1st 

annually. Races and practices shall not conflict with Rugby state 

tournaments. 

 

5.2 Management by Race to Empower LLC.. Race to Empower LLC. shall 

manage and operate the Premises and shall be responsible for all aspects of 

its operation, including use of the Premises by other parties or racing 

companies. Race to Empower LLC. shall prepare standard policies and 

procedures for use of the Premises by such other parties or racing 



 

Agreement - 4 

companies, which policies and procedures shall be approved by the City 

Council before Race to Empower LLC. will be permitted to allow use of the 

Premises by other parties or racing companies.  The policies and procedures 

shall include, at a minimum, the indemnity and insurance provisions set forth 

in paragraph 13 of this Agreement.   

 

5.3 Facilities.  Race to Empower LLC. will provide sufficient porta-potties, 

trash receptacles, and garbage cans at their own expense, consistent with the 

number of participants and spectators using the Premises for each event. 

 

5.4 Possession of Premises.  Race to Empower LLC. is entitled to 

continued possession of the Premises during the Term of this Agreement, 

provided that Race to Empower LLC. shall not unlawfully exclude any person 

from participation or use of the Premises, and provided further that Race to 

Empower LLC.’s possession of the Premises is subject to the termination 

provision set forth in paragraph 4 of this Agreement.  

 

In addition, Race to Empower LLC.’s possession of the Premises is subject to 

the City’s continued right to permit use of the center grass area of the 

speedway oval track by other entities or groups for recreational activities 

including, but not limited to rugby.  The City agrees to provide [14 days’] 

notice to Race to Empower LLC. of any such permitted use and agrees that 

any such permitted use will not conflict with events included in the schedule 

provided to the City.  

 

6. UTILITIES.  Race to Empower LLC. shall place the electrical power meter in 

his name and shall be responsible for and pay on a timely basis for all electrical 

power used. The City shall provide the water used at its expense. 

 



 

Agreement - 5 

7. SOUND MEASUREMENTS. Race to Empower LLC. acknowledges the City’s 

noise ordinance, set forth in Title 7, Chapter 7 of the Mountain Home City Code, and 

that he has been provided a copy of said ordinance, has read the ordinance and 

understands the ordinance.  Race to Empower LLC. shall abide by the City’s noise 

ordinance at all times in the operation of the Premises. The City has provided Race 

to Empower LLC. with a decibel meter capable of taking accurate measurements of 

sound. Race to Empower LLC. shall use the decibel meter supplied to him by the City 

and shall take a decibel reading at the easterly edge of Optimist Park at each 

practice and race and as instructed by any officers of the Mountain Home Police 

Department during peak participation for all practices and races. The decibel level 

may not exceed the City Code limit at any time at the easterly edge of Optimist Park.  

 

8. MAINTENANCE OF THE PREMISES; DUTY TO INSPECT.   

 

8.1 Maintenance of Premises.  Race to Empower LLC. shall have the 

right to improve the Premises and to operate the speedway oval racetrack 

and straight track, including operation and maintenance of structures 

incidental to operating such a speedway oval racetrack and straight track, 

selling refreshments, and providing for seating and parking for patrons and 

spectators, maintaining the existing parking lot, the pit area, landscaping and 

adjacent grounds at his own cost and expense.  

 

All improvements and/or alterations shall be approved by Race to Empower 

LLC. and his insurance company.  Race to Empower LLC. agrees and 

covenants to obtain all necessary permits and licenses for the construction 

and operation of such speedway oval racetrack and straight track and related 

activities, and to maintain the same in compliance with all applicable federal, 

state, county and local laws and ordinances.  Race to Empower LLC. shall 

keep the speedway oval racetrack and straight track, and any surrounding 



 

Agreement - 6 

property used with the speedway oval racetrack and straight track in a clean 

and presentable condition at all times. 

 

Race to Empower LLC. shall post signs to provide its contact information for 

racing inquiries and inform spectators that they assume all risk by their 

presence on the grounds.  The Race to Empower LLC. agrees mow the grass 

in the middle and around the speedway oval racetrack. 

 

Race to Empower LLC. shall not use any City equipment, personnel or other 

resources in the maintenance or operation of the speedway oval racetrack 

and straight track, without the prior approval of the Mayor, or his delegate.   

 

8.2 Duty to Inspect.  Race to Empower LLC. shall be under a duty 

throughout the duration of the Agreement to reasonably inspect the 

Premises for dangerous conditions or hazards, hidden or otherwise, and to 

make reasonable efforts to repair any discovered dangerous condition or 

hazard or immediately make such condition or hazards obvious to persons 

who might encounter the same.  Race to Empower LLC. shall clean up all 

litter associated with its use of the Premises, including facilities, structures 

and any concessions facilities.  Any damage to the Premises by Race to 

Empower LLC. or its invitees shall be the responsibility of Race to Empower 

LLC.. 

 

9. FREE ACCESS.  The City or its employees or agents shall have the right of 

free access to said speedway oval racetrack and straight track, and the surrounding 

premises at all reasonable times for the purpose of examining the same to 

determine whether or not the terms and conditions of this Agreement are being 

fulfilled or for the purpose of making any needed improvements to said Premises 

and which are the responsibility of the City under the provisions of this Agreement. 



 

Agreement - 7 

10. INCOME FROM OPERATION OF PREMISES.  Race to Empower LLC. may 

levy reasonable charges for the operation of the Premises. Race to Empower LLC. 

shall be entitled to all income he receives from his operation of the Premises.  All 

improvements made or equipment installed by Race to Empower LLC. becomes the 

sole property of the City of Mountain Home, and Race to Empower LLC. will be 

entitled to no reimbursement for costs, materials, or labor. 

 

11. RESTRICTION AGAINST LIENS.  Race to Empower LLC. shall pay and settle 

all expenses and liabilities arising out of or in any way connected with any and all 

construction, repairs, alterations or maintenance of the Premises and the 

surrounding property, and he shall keep the Premises and the improvements 

thereon free and clear from all liens of mechanics or materialmen, and all liens of a 

similar character, arising out of or growing out of the construction, repair, alteration 

or maintenance of such improvements.  

 

12. HAZARDOUS WASTE.  Race to Empower LLC. shall not store, generate or 

otherwise use or bring upon the Premises any hazardous waste as defined by 

Federal, State or local laws or regulations. 

 

13. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE; NO LIABILITY OF CITY.  Race to Empower 

LLC. shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all claims, judgments and 

demands of any persons or parties whatsoever, on account of injuries or 

occurrences in, on, or about the Premises, of the speedway oval racetrack and 

straight track, incurred during any events, programs or operations of the speedway 

oval racetrack and straight track, by Race to Empower LLC..  

 
Race to Empower LLC. shall maintain in full force and effect a policy or policies of 

comprehensive public liability and property damage insurance covering any 

injuries, damages, or occurrences mentioned in this Agreement in the amount of not 



 

Agreement - 8 

less than $1,000,000.00 combined single limit for bodily injury, property damage, 

and general liability with $2,000,000.00 aggregate. Such insurance policy or policies 

shall name the City as an additional insured thereon. Race to Empower LLC. shall 

furnish to the City Clerk copies of certificates of insurance verifying the existence 

and amounts of insurance required in this agreement. No policy shall be cancelable 

or subject to reduction of coverage or other modification except after thirty (30) 

days prior written notice to the City.  The City shall not be liable for any damage, 

loss, or injury to the person, property, or effects of Race to Empower LLC. or of any 

agent, servant, employee, or patron thereof, suffered on, in, or about the Premises.  

 

14. REMEDIES FOR DEFAULT.  If default be made in the performance of any of 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement by Race to Empower LLC. then the City 

shall first give Race to Empower LLC. thirty (30) days’ notice in writing specifying 

wherein he has failed to comply with this Agreement, and which said notice may be 

delivered to Race to Empower LLC. personally or sent to him by registered or 

certified mail, addressed as provided above.  If sent by mail, said notice shall be 

deemed served upon Race to Empower LLC. upon the date it is deposited in the 

United States mail with postage prepaid, certified or registered and addressed as 

above mentioned. If Race to Empower LLC. fails to correct such default within said 

thirty-day period, then the City may immediately terminate this Agreement and the 

right of Race to Empower LLC. to operate the speedway oval racetrack and straight 

track. 

 

15. ATTORNEYS' FEES.  In the event it becomes necessary for either of the 

parties to place this Agreement in the hands of an attorney for enforcement of their 

rights hereunder after default of the other party or to institute suit for enforcement 

of their rights hereunder, then the party not in default, or the prevailing party in 

case of suit, shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney’s fees and costs from 

the other party, in addition to any other damages allowed by law. 



 

Agreement - 9 

 

16. NO ASSIGNMENT WITHOUT CONSENT.  Race to Empower LLC. shall not 

assign this Agreement, nor provide insurance coverage for an event to be held on 

the Premises by any other organization or group, without first obtaining the written 

consent of the Mayor. 

 

17. SURRENDER UPON EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION.  Upon expiration or 

termination of this Agreement, Race to Empower LLC. shall surrender possession of 

the Premises to the City in the condition of the Premises at such expiration date, 

including any permanent improvements which Race to Empower LLC. placed or 

constructed on the Project.  Such permanent improvements shall not be removed 

prior to such expiration or termination and shall revert to the ownership and 

control of the City upon such expiration or termination. 

 

18. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

 

 18.1 Modification.  This Agreement may be modified or amended only be a 

writing duly executed by both parties. 

 

 18.2 Choice of Law.  This Agreement and its performance shall be 

construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Idaho. 

 

 18.3 Heirs and Assigns.  This Agreement and the terms and conditions 

hereof shall apply to and are binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, and 

assigns of the parties hereto. 

 

 18.4 Merger and Integration.  This writing embodies the whole 

agreement of the parties.  There are no promises, terms, conditions, or obligations 

other than those contained in this Agreement. All previous and contemporaneous 



 

Agreement - 10 

communications, representations, or agreements, either verbal or written, between 

the parties are superseded by this Agreement. 

 

 18.5 Performance.  The failure of a party hereto to insist upon strict 

performance or observation of the Agreement shall not be a waiver of any breach or 

of any terms or conditions of the Agreement by the other party. 

 

 18.6 Construction and Severability.  If any part of this Agreement is held 

to be invalid or unenforceable, such holding will not affect the validity or 

enforceability of any other part of this Agreement so long as the remainder of the 

Agreement is reasonable capable of completion. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals 

the day and year in this agreement first above written. 

 

 

 

 

(Signature Page follows) 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Agreement - 11 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO 

a municipal corporation 

 

By__________________________ 

     Rich Sykes, Mayor 

 

      (SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

 

By__________________________ 

    Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

      

       

STATE OF IDAHO, ) 

 )  ss. 

COUNTY OF ELMORE, ) 

 

 On this ____ day of ________________, 2025, before me, the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said state, personally appeared Mayor Rich Sykes and City Clerk 

Tiffany Belt, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing 

instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official 

seal, the day and year in this certificate first above written. 

 

   

 Notary Public for Idaho, 

 Residing at:   

 My commission expires:  

      



 

Agreement - 12 

RACE TO EMPOWER LLC. 

 

 

By__________________________ 

Director, Eric Barsness  

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IDAHO, ) 

 )  ss. 

COUNTY OF ELMORE, ) 

 

 On this ____ day of __________________, 2025, before me, the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said state, personally appeared Eric Barsness, known to me to be the 

person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to 

me that he executed the same. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official 

seal, the day and year in this certificate first above written. 

 

 

   

 Notary Public for Idaho, 

 Residing at:   

 My commission expires:  

 



 

Agreement - 13 

Exhibit A 



 

Agreement - 14 

 

 



 

Agreement - 15 

 



 

Agreement - 16 

 



Effective as of November 13, 2024 for January 1st, 2025 Season
APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL ON November 12, 2024
Public Hearing None

GREEN FEES 9 HOLES 18 HOLES FEE  Tax Total 

*Weekday- Monday through Thursday / Weekend -  Friday, Saturday, Sunday & Holiday

Adult Weekday* 20.80$           1.25$                      22.05$        
Adult Weekday* 29.71$         1.78$                      31.49$        
Adult Weekend* 29.71$           1.78$                      31.49$        
Adult Weekend* 35.65$         2.14$                      37.79$        
Junior Rate Age 6 - 18 (9 or 18 holes) 13.87$       0.83$                      14.70$        
Twilight Fees (9 or 18 holes)Twilight Fees are 2 hours before sunset/7 days a week 19.81$       1.19$                      21.00$        

GREEN FEES SENIOR RATE STARTING AT AGE 60 -  (Monday - Friday only) 9 HOLES 18 HOLES Tax Total 
Senior rates ONLY apply Monday through Thursday and excludes all Holidays

Senior Rate 18.81$            1.13$                      19.94$        
Senior Rate  23.77$         1.43$                      25.20$        

GREEN FEES MILITARY DISCOUNT  9 HOLES 18 HOLES  Tax Total 
Military rates Weekday- Monday through Thursday  / Weekend -  Friday, Saturday, Sunday & Holiday

Military Rate Weekday 18.81$           1.13$                      19.94$        
Military Rate Weekday  23.77$         1.43$                      25.20$        
Military Rate Weekend 20.80$           1.25$                      22.05$        
Military Rate Weekend 26.74$         1.60$                      28.34$        

SEASON PASSES *All Passes Cover tournaments and League play greens fee* FEE Tax Total 
Adult 734.93$         44.10$                   779.03$      
Adult (1 month Pass) 133.72$         8.02$                      141.74$      
Weekday Only * Pass is Valid Monday through Friday  (Mon-Fri, excluding Holidays) 374.39$         22.46$                   396.85$      
Student Pass (age 6-23) (19-23 School ID Req.) 173.83$         10.43$                   184.26$      

MHHS Golf Team participants  *Pass is Valid only during the Idaho High School Activity Association's designated sports season                                                                                                                -$                -$                       -$             
(During Idaho High School Activity Association designated sports season) 

Resolution #08-2025R 

Current 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO, PROVIDING CLARIFICATION TO RESOLUTION 31-2024R and RESOLUTION 08-2025R GOLF FEES FOR THE 2025 GOLF SEASON.
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO, as follows:
1.  GOLF FEES.
The fees for the City of Mountain Home Golf Course were established on November 13, 2024 and March 25, 2025, for the 2025 Golf Season as follows:

tbelt
Text Box
Staff seeks clarifications are in red for approval by City Council. 

tbelt
Snapshot

tbelt
Highlight
Twilight Fees are 2 hours before sunset/7 days a week 

tbelt
Highlight
 *All Passes Cover tournaments and League play greens fee* 

tbelt
Highlight
* Pass is Valid Monday through Friday



Punch Cards **Punch Cards Purchased at golf course only** FEE Tax Total 
10 Rounds (9 Hole) *PUNCH CARD 200.08$         12.00$                   212.08$      
10 Rounds (18 Hole)  *PUNCH CARD 267.43$         16.05$                   283.48$      

CART STORAGE & TRAIL FEES Tax Total 
(Must pay trail fee with tax when renting shed with or without a cart) STORAGE TRAIL FEE
All Cart Types 296.49$         17.79$                   314.28$      

233.75$      14.03$                   247.78$      

Total payment 562.05$      

TRAIL FEES (Per Cart) FEE Tax Total 
Annual Trail Fees (Sticker provided for Cart) 233.75$         14.03$                   247.78$      
Daily Trail Fees 19.81$           1.19$                      21.00$        

DAILY CART RENTAL FEE Tax Total 
Cart Rental per person (9 hole) 9.90$              0.59$                      10.49$        
Cart Rental per person (18 hole) 19.81$           1.19$                      21.00$        
Pull Carts (9 or 18 holes) 3.96$              0.24$                      4.20$           

ANNUAL CART LEASE (Per Seat) **Purchase at Golf Course only** FEE Tax Total 
Annual Cart Lease (Per Seat)  601.21$         36.07$                   637.28$      

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho on the _______ April, 2025.

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, on the ______ April, 2025. 

_____________________________________
Rich Sykes, Mayor

ATTEST: (SEAL)

____________________________________
Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 



tbelt
Text Box
Approved Resolution during 
March 25, 2025 meeting. 





NEW 
BUSINESS 

 



Resolution #09-2025R  – Page 1 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  #09-2025R 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO, ESTABLISHING A FEE FOR 
MISSING/REPLACEMENT GOLF CARTS KEY. 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO, 
as follows: 

 The fee for a Missing/Replacement Golf Cart is hereby established as follows: 

Current Fee:  Proposed Fee:  

Missing/Replacement Golf Cart Fee          None        $20.00 per key 

 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, this ________ day of April 2025.   

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, this __________ day of April 2025. 

 
 
 
____              _____________ 
Rich Sykes, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
   
        (SEAL) 
        
______           ___________  
Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 





MEMORANDUMS 
FROM STAFF 



 

        City of Mountain Home       City Hall & Office of Mayor Sykes 

P.O. Box 10, 160 S. 3rd East, Mountain Home, ID 83647 • (208) 587-2104 • www.mountain-home.us 

 

P.O. Box 10 ● Mountain Home, ID 83647  
www.mountain-home.us 

 

April 4, 2025  

 

RE: Launch of CIMS Cemetery Software 

City Council Meeting: April 8, 2025  

 

Mayor and City Council members, 

We are excited to share that the City has officially completed the implementation of the 
CIMS Cemetery software. This new tool is now live and accessible through the City’s 
website, offering the public a user-friendly way to explore mapping and burial details for 
our municipal cemetery. 

City staff have dedicated the past year to this important project, carefully compiling and 
organizing cemetery data to enhance public access and preserve historical records. The 
result is an interactive and informative resource we are proud to make available to the 
community. 

In the coming weeks, we also plan to install signage at the cemetery to inform visitors 
about this new service and how to access it. 

We encourage all Council members to take a moment to explore the site and see the great 
work City staff have put into this project. 

Let me know if you have any questions or require additional information. 

 
 
 
Respectfully,  
 
 
 
Tiffany Belt  
City Clerk 
 
 
T  (208) 587-2104 
tbelt@mountain-home.us  
 

http://www.mountain-home.us/
mailto:tbelt@mountain-home.us
tbelt
Stamp



1.

www.cimscemeterysoftware.com 

Open your smartphone camera

Scan this QR code/take picture of 
code to the right of this description

Browse cemetery records

You can also access this 
cemetery’s records through:
https://burialsearch.com/1046

GPS walk to grave directions are available
Need help finding a burial?

Search cemetery records 
on your phone.

Mountain View Cemetery
Mountain Home, ID



 

        City of Mountain Home       City Hall & Office of Mayor Sykes 

P.O. Box 10, 160 S. 3rd East, Mountain Home, ID 83647 • (208) 587-2104 • www.mountain-home.us 

 

P.O. Box 10 ● Mountain Home, ID 83647  
www.mountain-home.us 

 

April 4, 2025  

 

RE: Golf Course information  

City Council Meeting: April 8, 2025  

 

Mayor and City Council members, 

City staff have been actively working through the action items identified during the recent 
meeting with community members regarding the City Golf Course. Significant progress has 
been made in response to the feedback and requests shared during that discussion. 

We’re pleased to share that a real-time event calendar has been added to the City website 
under the Golf section, making it easier for the community to stay informed about 
upcoming activities and events. Additionally, City staff have held several 
telecommunication meetings to explore options for electronic tournament scoring and 
tournament planning. We hope to provide more detailed updates on these initiatives in the 
coming weeks. 

Reach out with questions. 

 
Respectfully,  
 
 
 
Tiffany Belt  
City Clerk 
 
 
T  (208) 587-2104 
tbelt@mountain-home.us  
 

http://www.mountain-home.us/
mailto:tbelt@mountain-home.us
tbelt
Stamp



 

        City of Mountain Home       City Hall & Office of Mayor Sykes 

P.O. Box 10, 160 S. 3rd East, Mountain Home, ID 83647 • (208) 587-2104 • www.mountain-home.us 

 

P.O. Box 10 ● Mountain Home, ID 83647  
www.mountain-home.us 

 

April 4, 2025  

 

RE: CivicPlus Agenda Management Software – Update and Transition Plan 

City Council Meeting: April 8, 2025  

 

Mayor and City Council members, 

I am pleased to share that we are in the final stages of implementing the CivicPlus Agenda 
Management Software. The meeting packet for April 8th was successfully completed using 
the new system, and we plan to exclusively create all meeting packets through CivicPlus by 
the end of May 2025. 

Once CivicPlus is fully live, paper and PDF packets will no longer be provided. Please note 
that an invitation to create your access account was sent to you on Friday, April 4th. This 
account will be essential for receiving your future meeting packets. 

The goal of this software transition is to streamline how City staff create meeting materials, 
eliminate duplication of efforts, and reduce costs, ultimately saving taxpayer dollars. 

If you have any questions or need assistance accessing your account, please don’t hesitate 
to reach out. 

 
Respectfully,  
 
 
 
Tiffany Belt  
City Clerk 
 
 
T  (208) 587-2104 
tbelt@mountain-home.us  
 

http://www.mountain-home.us/
mailto:tbelt@mountain-home.us
tbelt
Stamp


